
APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – February 7 2012   
  page 1 of 6 

Town of Hinesburg  
Development Review Board 

February 7, 2012 
Approved 2/21/12 

 
Members Present:  Tom McGlenn, Zoë Wainer, Dennis Place, Ted Bloomhardt, Greg Waples, 
Dick Jordan, Kate Myhre. 
 
Members Absent: none 
 
Also Present: Peter Erb (Zoning Administrator), Alex Weinhagen (Director of Planning & 
Zoning), Freeda Powers (Recording Secretary), Elly Coates, Leon Lestage, Bill Moller, Margery 
Sharp, Sarah Murphy, Brett Grabowski and Catherine Seidenberg. 
 
Tom McGlenn chaired the meeting, which started at 7:38pm. 
 
Prior to the first agenda item, Joe Colangelo addressed the board regarding a recent mix up 
when a  board appointment opportunity came up.  Alternate Bill Moller showed interest and 
applied for an upcoming opening on the board but was overlooked in the process in error.  The 
selectboard reappointed Zoe Wainer & Greg Waples to new terms. The appointments 
confirmed stand as is, and Joe C offered sincere apologies to the board as well as to Bill M.  
Greg W offered to respectfully turn over his seat on the board to allow Bill M the opportunity 
he was seeking, to which Bill M politely declined.  Current board appointments will stand as is 
until further terms are up for review. 
 
Minutes from January 3rd, 2012 Meeting: 
Ted B MOVED to approve as amended.  Tom M SECONDED the motion.  The motion PASSED 6‐
0; Dick Jordan abstained from vote as he was present for Hannaford Deliberations only on Jan 
3rd.  
 
Hinesburg Center, LLC (Tax Map #08‐01‐06.322): Lot #43 & Lots 47/48 off Farmall Drive and 
Kailey’s Way.  Subdivision Revision, Conditional Use & Site Plan Review. 
 
Brett Grabowski represented the Hinesburg Center, LLC subdivision revision proposal to swap 
locations of previously approved buildings. The applicant proposed swapping locations of 
previously proposed buildings on Lots 43, 47 & 48 for commercial use and residential buildings. 
 
Greg W asked if the corner lot is going to be mixed‐commercial building.  Brett G said no, it will 
be purely commercial. He said there is no tenant signed on yet but that there is a strong 
application on the table for a “Green” Consulting Firm that would possibly occupy the entire 
building.  Brett G stated that in his opinion, the sidewalks, lights, etc already functioning along 
Rte 116 & Farmall Drive make for a pleasant pedestrian experience which will only be enhanced 
with the final streetscape plans, to include stairway entrances with black rails and nice 
landscaping. 
 



APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – February 7 2012   
  page 2 of 6 

Brett G addressed concerns in Alex W’s staff report regarding elevation in the proposed 
commercial building on the corner of Farmall Drive & Kailey’s Way and its interface with the 
residential neighborhood on Farmall Drive and future development to the west.  He said in 
order to make the streetscape functional and appealing, stairway entrances and landscaping 
are planned to compensate for the slope, and lighting is planned for safety to entrances.  He 
said that upon approval, landscape plans will be a similar scheme to that seen at Lot 41. 
 
Ted B clarified the plans; the idea is to shift the previously proposed residential buildings to the 
north behind Kinney Drugs, and put the commercial building on the corner lot of Farmall Dr & 
Kailey’s Way.  Brett G said yes, that is the basic idea. 
 
Alex W said a commercial building would seem to have great potential for tenants given the 
corner location.  Brett G reiterated that indeed, they have a strong application for a local 
business already on the table and that the tenant would be in the position to fill the entire 
building. 
 
Dick J wanted to know if the architecture of the proposed residential buildings is the same. 
Brett G said yes, they would look the same.  Dick J also wanted to know if parking would 
become an issue. Brett G said that it would not be an issue as parking has already been built in 
anticipation for future need and is plentiful and readily available in the area, including the 
Kinney’s parking lot.  Greg W asked if that meant the proposed development should be 
expected to share parking with Kinney’s.  Alex W said yes, that is the idea.  Brett G backed this, 
saying he finds that when they make “mixed use” development as proposed here, shared 
parking tends to work out very well due to traffic flow and scheduling. He also said that shared 
parking is beneficial in that less impervious cover is planned in proposed development, which 
leads to less storm water runoff issues. He feels strongly that there is adequate parking 
available and points out that a majority of Kinney’s parking is temporary, short term parking of 
customers who are in and out in a matter of minutes not hours. He also notes that the new 
parallel parking now available on Rte 116 is getting a lot of use. 
 
Zoe W wanted to know if the new spots in the Kinney’s lot would be unusable in snowy winters.  
Brett G said no, there are lots of places to deal with snow removal should the need arise.  He 
says parking at Kinney’s should be available 12 months of the year. 
 
Zoe W wondered about landscaping plans and asked if the proposed plans include more than 
just trees. Bret G assured the board that yes, the landscape plans would include more than just 
trees, especially right around the buildings themselves.  Alex W reminded the applicant that as 
submitted, the old landscape plans are shown, and that those plans should be refined for the 
new proposal. 
 
Greg W clarified that the board is being asked to allow a revised final plat before approval. Alex 
W said yes, that is correct and recommended Bret G revise the proposed landscape plans for 
approval. Greg W said in that case, the board can not make a final decision on the proposal 
tonight. Alex W said correct, the board is just hearing the proposal to revise and will later vote 
to approve or deny a final proposal. 
 



APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – February 7 2012   
  page 3 of 6 

Tom M asked if the public had any questions.  Dan Jacobs spoke as a representative of the 
Creekside Association and voiced concerns regarding drainage issues at the intersection of 
Farmall Drive & Kailey’s Way.  Photos were shown to the board via projector to demonstrate 
the build up of ice and standing water in the area.  Dan J said it is unknown if these drainage 
problems are a result of the construction going on, the ice/rain this season, or a failure of the 
Creekside Association catch basins to handle the runoff from the existing development. 
 
Brett G spoke to the issue, saying to his knowledge the problem did not exist prior to October 
of 2011.  He believes the problem is at least in part due to the wet weather, with the freeze 
cycles water can’t be absorbed and drains off the town lot, into the already full catch basins, 
resulting in the problem we see now.   
 
Greg W asked what is currently in place for catch basins. Brett G said there are two catch basins 
there now. He said part of the problem is that the drains for the catch basins freeze up and 
then the basins can’t drain properly. 
 
Ted B took issue with the cold temps being at play here; it is Vermont, and we should not 
expect that drains should be freezing up like that.  He feels this especially true in light of the 
mild winter we have experienced.  Brett G suggested that we have had a few very cold nights 
and that, perhaps, is all it takes to start the back‐up process that progressively worsens. 
Alex W asked if these were new catch basins, and Brett G said no, they were existing basins. 
Brett reiterated that to his knowledge, this is the first time the area has experienced problems 
around these catch basins failing to drain properly. 
 
Alex W suggests this might be a result of higher runoff than before due to the development of 
the surrounding area. Brett G replied that he feels this is a temporary problem and that once 
new catch basins are built with the new proposed development, runoff will flow towards them 
and the problem will be alleviated. However, he also states, this development and these new 
catch basins are not slated to start until this summer. He said they will be sure to keep an eye 
on the drainage issues in the area until the weather warms and dries up a little.  If he sees it as 
a reoccurring problem, he said they will address it, but for the most part he feels it is a unique 
occurrence this winter. 
 
Greg W remained unconvinced that the weather could be the main issue and reiterated that in 
his opinion, winter cold should not explain this drainage problem. He asked how did the area 
fair during Tropical Storm Irene last summer?  Brett G suggested the area did well through that 
storm and did not experience any major flooding issues. 
Alex W reminded the board of what Brett G had previously mentioned regarding the future 
implementation of more catch basins in the proposed new lot sites; whereas the land now  
slopes towards Farmall Drive, the topography will change with the new development. 
Zoe W clarified with Brett G that in his opinion, the drainage issues seen this season are a result 
of more water runoff and rather peculiar weather? Brett G said yes. 
 
Dan Jacobs asked Brett G about some remaining tasks around the Creekside Association.  Brett 
G said that to his knowledge, those tasks had been taken care of and could be signed off on. 
Dan J mentioned that the town still has not taken over the streets in the Creekside Association 



APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – February 7 2012   
  page 4 of 6 

area.  Greg W suggested to Dan J that he take those issues up in writing with the staff to be 
presented to the board for discussion.  
 
Brett G addressed lighting in proposed development saying the plan is to use LED Recessed 
Downcast lighting. 
 
Dick J mentioned that it appears that there is no lighting at the main entry on Farmall Drive at 
proposed lot 43. Brett G suggested that there are currently street lights which will provide 
plenty of residual lighting. If this is not adequate, he said they are willing to make an 
adjustment as needed. Zoe W said that lighting is important to safety, especially where there 
will be stairs. 
 
Greg W wondered who this lighting is meant to aid.  Alex W said any and all pedestrians.  Greg 
W clarified that this is a proposed commercial lot.  Brett G confirmed it is proposed as 
commercial use and also stated that he had communicated via email to Alex W the Conditional 
Use terms of hours of operations, number of employees, etc. 
 
Zoe W wanted to know if anticipated traffic is from employees or customers. Brett G said that 
based on the anticipated applicant, it is mostly going to be employees. 
 
Dan J asked if the anticipated tenant is retail.  Brett G said it is not retail, but offices for a 
consulting firm that are interested in the space.  Dan J asked if the DRB is concerned with the 
type of business that applies. (I.e., drug rehab etc) Greg W said that the applicant will clear 
details with the board when a tenant has been decided on and the vetting process will be site 
specific.  Dick J added that any tenant has to have permitted use to do business any way.  Alex 
W cautioned that final decisions are not based on “good” vs. “bad” tenants, but rather does the 
site fit hours of operations, number of employees, impact on surrounding neighborhood, etc. 
 
Brett G asked that the Conditional Use be given for office space. Peter E suggested that the 
permit for Conditional Use be allowed to remain valid in the event of another change in 
proposed development. 
Ted B said that the board needs some elevation data and landscaping plans.  Alex W reminded 
the board that details on stairs, lighting and landscaping should be included in the still to come 
revised plans. 
 
Dick J asked about the height of the peaks on the residential buildings.  Alex W replied that the 
peak heights are at 35’.  Peter E added that he feels this adds to the feeling of a proper 
streetscape.  Zoe W agreed that is what we want, a nice streetscape and a plan that includes 
room for trees, etc.  Peter E voiced his concerns about the challenge of blending the front of 
the buildings with the street.  Dan J suggested the board keep in mind plants that are 
appropriate for the climate, zone, and soil types in order to have a long lasting landscape that 
thrives. 
 
Dick J again addressed the issue of parking, and Alex W reminded the board that parking will 
also be available on Kailey’s Way.  Brett G reiterated that “flex‐parking” is fundamental to the 
success of mixed development such as this.  



APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – February 7 2012   
  page 5 of 6 

Dennis P cautioned that insufficient parking can limit what else can go in these lots in the future 
if consideration is not taken now for anticipated parking needs.  Brett G said it is possible to 
have more parking options on Farmall Drive in the future to accommodate residential needs.  
Alex W said that calculations were done in the original proposal and that he would be happy to 
provide the board with an excerpt from that anticipated traffic/parking data to compare with 
the current proposal.  Zoe W agreed this was a good idea.  Brett G assured the board that the 
calculations were done according to code. 
 
Ted B said he sees no fatal flaws in the proposal, just wants applicant to work out details 
regarding lighting, south slope working landscape, true elevation data.  Tom M made a motion 

to continue to March 6 meeting.  Ted B SECONDED the motion. The motion passed 7‐0. 
 
Pearce, Seidenberg, Ellis (Tax Map #11‐01‐21.000):  Discuss revisions to proposed subdivision 
pursuant to sketch plan approval granted on November 1, 2011 – 1) changing from a 3‐lot to a 
2‐lot subdivision; 2) development deferral for new lot with a waiver request of septic design 
submission requirements.  2678 Silver Street.  Agricultural zoning district.  Owner/Applicant: 
Estate of Gwendolen Pearce et al.  
 
Tom M said he has no major issues with this application. 
Alex W reviewed the previous sketch plan approval from last year.  The primary objective of the 
applicant is to get the existing house structure on its own lot.  He asked the board if they would 
consider the revised plat and waive the septic review as no new development is currently 
proposed.  This will save the applicants money. 
 
Ted B pointed out the low but evident risk being taken by the applicant in that they could 
potentially create an undevelopable lot (12 acres) without room for adequate septic system. 
Catherine S spoke on behalf of the applicants and said that she had test pits dug to assure 
future possibilities for septic sites on the property.  Tom M asked if the board had previously 
used a 2‐step process.  Alex W said yes. 
 
Zoe W inquired if the applicants plan to continue the land use as horse pasture and haying? 
Catherine S said yes. 
 
Tom M asked if the board should modify the previous decision or make a new decision.  Alex W 
said neither; the board should decide if the applicants can submit a final plat application 
without a new sketch plan.  Alex W reminded the board that most of the conditions the board 
had previously given were based on proposed development, which has now been nixed.  Tom 
M made a motion to allow a down‐size of the final plat to 2‐lots without a new sketch plan 
application.  Ted B made a motion to Approve.  Dennis P SECONDED the motion.  The motion 
passed 7‐0. 
 
Other Business: Peter E asked the board to consider what Hannaford business they want to 
address at the Feb 21st meeting. 
Greg W asked if the board has all of the current info they have requested. 
Alex W said that they are awaiting the most up to date set of plans from the applicant. 



APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – February 7 2012   
  page 6 of 6 

Dick J stated that the board needs to review that data before they can adjourn to make a 
decision on the application. 
Peter E suggested the board look at remaining issues they have with the application such as 
storm water.  Tom M wants data on the impact on traffic.  Peter E suggested the board come 
up with some thresholds and offer them to the applicant.  Dick J also wants to see the 
applicants’ 3D version of their “park” off the parking lot so that the board can actually visualize 
it.  And also, regarding proposed “canal park,” what are the applicant’s limits around this area? 
 
Tom M moved to adjourn the meeting. 
Ted B SECONDED the motion. 
The meeting ended at 9:05pm 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Freeda Powers‐‐Recording Secretary 


